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The Holy Shroud of Turin, one of Christianity’s most revered relics, has a thousand-
year history intertwined with that of the House of Savoy and the Savoyard city.
Arriving in Turin in 1578, it became an object of profound devotion, with solemn
exhibitions linked to historical and dynastic events. In the 19th century, figures such
as Saint John Bosco and other Turin saints promoted its veneration, contributing to
its widespread appeal. Today, preserved in Guarini’s Chapel, the Shroud is at the
centre of scientific and theological studies. In parallel, the Church of the Holy
Shroud in Rome, linked to the House of Savoy and the Piedmontese community,
represents another significant place, where Don Bosco attempted to establish a
Salesian presence.

            The Holy Shroud of Turin, improperly called the “Santo Sudario” in Italian
due to the French custom of calling it “Le Saint Suaire” was owned by the House of
Savoy since 1463, and was transferred from Chambery to the new Savoy capital in
1578.
            In that same year, the first exposition was held, commissioned by Emanuele
Filiberto in homage to Card. Charles Borromeo who came to Turin on pilgrimage to
venerate it.

Expositions in the 19th century and veneration of the Shroud
            In the 19th century, the Expositionsin 1815, 1842, 1868 and 1898 are
particularly worthy of note: the first for the return of the Savoy family to their
states, the second for the wedding of Victor Emmanuel II to Maria Adelaide of
Habsburg-Lorraine, the third for the wedding of Umberto I to Margaret of Savoy-
Genoa, and the fourth for the Universal Exhibition.
            The nineteenth-century Turin saints, Cottolengo, Cafasso and Don Bosco,
were devotees of the Holy Shroud, emulating the example of Blessed Sebastiano
Valfré, the apostle of Turin during the siege of 1706.
            The Biographical Memoirs assure us that Don Bosco venerated it in
particular at the Exposition in 1842 and 1868, when he also brought the boys from
the oratory to see it (BM II, 91; IX, 70-71.
            Today, the priceless canvas, donated by Umberto II of Savoy to the Holy
See, is entrusted to the Archbishop of Turin’s “Pontifical Custodian” and kept in the
sumptuous Guarini Chapel behind the Cathedral.
            In Turin there is also, in Via Piave at the corner of Via San Domenico, the



Church of the Holy Shroud, built by the Confraternity of the same name and rebuilt
in 1761. Adjacent to the church is the “Sindonological Museum” and the
headquarters of the “Cultores Sanctae Sindonis” Sodality, a centre for
sindonological studies to which Salesian scholars such as Fr Natale Noguier de
Malijay, Fr Antonio Tonelli, Fr Alberto Caviglia, Fr Pietro Scotti and, more recently, Fr
Pietro Rinaldi and Fr Luigi Fossati, to name but the main ones, have made valuable
contributions.

The Church of the Holy Shroud in Rome
            A Church of the Holy Shroud also exists in Rome along the street of the
same name that runs from Largo Argentina parallel to Corso Vittorio. Constructed in
1604 to a design by Carlo di Castellamonte, it was the Church of the Piedmontese,
Savoyards and Niçois, built by the Confraternity of the Holy Shroud that had sprung
up in Rome at that time. After 1870 it became the special church of the House of
Savoy.
            During his stays in Rome, Don Bosco celebrated Mass in that church several
times and formulated a plan for it and the adjacent house in line with the purpose of
the then extinct Confraternity, dedicated to charitable works for abandoned youth,
the sick and prisoners.
            The Confraternity had ceased operating at the beginning of the century and
the ownership and administration of the church had passed to the Sardinian
Legation to the Holy See. By the 1960s, the church was in need of major
renovations, so much so that in 1868 it was temporarily closed.
            But already in 1867 Don Bosco had come up with the idea of proposing to
the Savoy Government to hand over the use and administration of the church to
him, offering his collaboration in money to complete the restoration work. Perhaps
he foresaw the entry of the Piedmontese troops into Rome not far away and,
wishing to open a house there, he thought of doing so before the situation
precipitated making it more difficult to obtain the Holy See’s approval and the
State’s respect for agreements (BM IX, 192, 223, 301.
            He then presented the request to the government. In 1869, during a
stopover in Florence, he prepared a draft agreement which, on reaching Rome, he
presented to Pius IX. Having obtained his assent, he moved on to the official request
to the Ministry of Foreign Affairs, but, unfortunately, the occupation of Rome then
came to jeopardise the whole affair. Don Bosco himself saw the inappropriateness
of insisting. Taking on a Roman church belonging to the Savoy by a religious
Congregation with its Mother House in Turin at that time, could have appeared an
act of opportunism and servility towards the new Government.
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            After the breach of Porta Pia, with a minute dated 2 December 1871, the
Church of the Most Holy Shroud was annexed to the Royal House and designated as
the official seat of the Palatine Chief Chaplain. Following Pius IX’s interdict on the
Chapels of the former Apostolic Palace of the Quirinal, it was in the Church of the
Shroud that all the sacred rites of the Royal Family took place.
            In 1874 Don Bosco again tested the ground with the Government. But,
unfortunately, intemperate news leaked from the newspapers definitively put a stop
to the project (BM X, 532-533).
            With the end of the monarchy on 2 June 1946, the entire Shroud complex
passed under the management of the General Secretariat of the Presidency of the
Republic. In 1984, following the new Concordat which sanctioned the abolition of
the Palatine Chapels, the Church of the Shroud was entrusted to the Military
Ordinariate and has remained so to this day.
            However, we would like to recall the fact that Don Bosco, in seeking a
favourable opportunity to open a house in Rome, set his eyes on the Church of the
Holy Shroud.


